
CITY OF MERRILL 

COMMON COUNCIL 

AGENDA ● TUESDAY DECEMBER 8, 2015 

 Regular Meeting City Hall Council Chambers 7:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation by Pastor Andy Perry, Bible Presbyterian Church 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call 

5. Public Comment Period 

6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s): 

1. Minutes of November 10, 2015 meeting   

7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s): 

1. Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015   

8. Public Hearing(s): 

1. Public Hearing on Charter Ordinance to eliminate the Street Commissioner as 
an elected officer   

9. General agenda items: 

1. Claim filed by Laana Gartmann for damages to her vehicle from a manhole 
cover on West Main Street, on October 15, 2015. The City's insurance carrier 
recommends that the claim be disallowed. This recommendation is based on 
the fact that an investigation by the insurance carrier revealed no negligence 
on behalf of the City. The City did not have prior actual or constructive notice 
of the manhole condition which allegedly caused the incident.   

2. Employee Years of Service Recognition:   

 Tim S. Koenig, 15 years (Transit Department)   

3. Presentation by River District Development Foundation on a TAP grant 
proposal being submitted for the River Bend Trail.   

10. Personnel and Finance Committee: 

1. Bids on City sale of vacant lot at 301 East Second Street.  The Personnel and 
Finance Committee recommends approving the bid of $100 from Mark 
Raymer.  

11. Placing Committee Reports on File: 

1. Consider placing the following minutes on file: Board of Public Works, 
Committee of the Whole, Community Development Committee, Health & 
Safety Committee, Housing Authority, Library Board, Merrill Enrichment 
Center Committee, Redevelopment Authority and Transit Commission.   



Agenda Common Council Tuesday December 8, 2015 

12. Resolutions 

1. A Resolution ratifying the January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2017 contact 
between the City of Merrill and the International Association of Firefighters 
Local 847.   

2. Resolution authorizing public WI-FI/Internet expenditures from cable 
television franchise fees.   

3. A Resolution Authorizing a Development Agreement by and between the City 
of Merrill, Wisconsin  and Alamsa LLC   

13. Ordinances: 

1. A Charter Ordinance eliminating the Street Commissioner as en elected 
officer.  This charter ordinance received a first reading at the November 10, 
2015 Common Council meeting.   

2. Ordinance amending Code of Ordinances Section 18-122, related to Special 
Assessment Installment Payment procedures.   

3. Ordinance amending Code of Ordinance Chapter 32, Article IV, Section 32-
88(f)(1), related to bond refunds for street openings.   

14. Mayor's Communications 

15. Adjournment 

 

William N. Heideman, CMC, WCMC 
City Clerk 

 
The Merrill City Hall is accessible to the physically disadvantaged. If special accommodations are needed, 

please contact the Merrill City Hall at (715) 536-5594. 



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3

Attachment: 2015-11-10 Minutes  (1407 : Minutes of November 10, 2015 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4

Attachment: 2015-11-10 Minutes  (1407 : Minutes of November 10, 2015 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5

Attachment: 2015-11-10 Minutes  (1407 : Minutes of November 10, 2015 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6

Attachment: 2015-11-10 Minutes  (1407 : Minutes of November 10, 2015 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7

Attachment: 2015-11-10 Minutes  (1407 : Minutes of November 10, 2015 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8

Attachment: 2015-11-10 Minutes  (1407 : Minutes of November 10, 2015 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9

Attachment: 2015-11-10 Minutes  (1407 : Minutes of November 10, 2015 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
0

Attachment: 2015-11-10 Minutes  (1407 : Minutes of November 10, 2015 meeting)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
1

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
2

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
3

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
4

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
5

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
6

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
7

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
8

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
9

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
0

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
1

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
2

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
3

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
4

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
5

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
6

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
7

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
8

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
9

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
0

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
1

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
2

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
3

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
4

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
5

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
6

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
7

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
8

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
9

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
0

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
1

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
2

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
3

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
4

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
5

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
6

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
7

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
8

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
9

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
0

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
1

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
2

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
3

Attachment: Gartmann Insurance Claim  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



9.
1.

b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
4

Attachment: Gartmann Recommendation from Insurance  (1421 : Gartmann Claim)



 
 

November 13, 2015 

 

 

City of Merrill 

Attn: Kathy Seubert 

1004 E 1st St 

Merrill WI 54452 

 

 

Program: League of Wisconsin Municipalities Mutual Insurance 

Our Insured: City of Merrill 

Date of loss: 10/14/2015 

Our Claim # WM000350140104 

Claimant: Laana Gartmann 

16100 93rd St 

Chippewa Falls WI 54729 

 

Dear Ms. Seubert, 

 

Statewide Services, Inc. administers the claims for the League of Wisconsin Municipalities 

Mutual Insurance which insures the City of Merrill.  We are in receipt of the claim 

submitted by Ms. Gartmann for damage to her vehicle due to the above incident. 

 

We have reviewed the matter and recommend that the City of Merrill deny this claim 

pursuant to the Wisconsin statute for disallowance of claim 893.80(lg). The disallowance 

will shorten the statute of limitations period to six (6) months.  

 

Our denial is based on the fact that the investigation revealed no negligence on behalf of 

the City. The City did not have prior actual or constructive notice of the manhole 

condition which allegedly caused this incident. 

 

Please submit the disallowance directly to the claimant at the above address.  The 

disallowance should be sent certified or registered mail and must be received by the 

claimant within 120 days after you receive Notice of Claim. Please send a copy of the 

disallowance to Statewide Services Inc. Claims. 

 

 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

9.1.c

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ar
tm

an
n

 In
su

ra
n

ce
 C

la
im

 L
et

te
r 

 (
14

21
 :

 G
ar

tm
an

n
 C

la
im

)



 

Sarah Bourgeois 

PO Box 5555 

Madison, WI. 53705-0555 

800-545-2190 Phone 

800-854-1537 Fax 

sbourgeois@statewidesvcs.com 

 

CC:  Bill Barnes 

 

9.1.c

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

ar
tm

an
n

 In
su

ra
n

ce
 C

la
im

 L
et

te
r 

 (
14

21
 :

 G
ar

tm
an

n
 C

la
im

)



9.
3.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
7

Attachment: Request on River Bend Trail presentation  (1420 : Presentation by River District Development



10
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
8

Attachment: Request to consider bids for sale of lot on East Second  (1415 : Bids on lot at 301 East



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
9

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
0

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
1

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
2

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
3

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
4

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
5

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
6

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
7

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
8

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
9

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
0

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
1

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
2

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
3

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
4

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
5

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
6

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
7

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
8

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
9

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
0

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
1

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
2

Attachment: Committee Minutes  (1412 : File Committee Reports)



RESOLUTION NO.  
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE JANUARY 1, 2016 to DECEMBER 31, 2017 
CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MERRILL AND THE INTERNATIONAL 

ASSOCIATION OF FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 847 
 

 WHEREAS, negotiations between the City of Merrill and the International 
Association of Firefighters Local 847 have culminated a tentative contract 
agreement; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 8th day of December, 2015, that the 
City of Merrill accept the terms and conditions for the January 1, 2016 to 
December 31, 2017 employment years according to the terms of the contract 
between the City of Merrill and the International Association of Firefighters Local 
847 on file in the City Clerk’s office.  Said changes and amendments in the terms 
and conditions to the January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2017 contract shall be 
effective January 1, 2016.  The existing agreement shall be modified accordingly. 
 
 

Recommended by:  Mayor Bialecki 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk

12.1.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 -
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
14

28
 :

 F
ir

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



Fire Fiscal Impact - 2016 - 2017 Revised: 11/3/2015

City of Merrill - Merrill Firefighters Local 847 2016 - 2017 Contract Fiscal Impact

06/29/15 12/28/15 06/27/16 12/26/16 06/27/17
1.00% 1.00% 1.00% Annual 2016 1.00% 1.00% Annual 2017

Firefighter/Paramedic $58,304.17 $58,887.21 $59,476.07 $59,181.64 $60,070.83 $60,671.54 $60,371.19
Firefighter/EMT $54,483.87 $55,028.71 $55,579.00 $55,303.85 $56,134.79 $56,696.13 $56,415.46

12/28/15 06/27/16 Annualized 12/26/16 06/27/17 Annualized
Wage Adjustments 1.00% 1.00% 2016 1.00% 1.00% 2017
Firefighter/Paramedic $583.04 $588.86 $585.95 $594.76 $600.71 $597.73
Firefighter/EMT $544.84 $550.29 $547.56 $555.79 $561.35 $558.57

Annualized Annualized
Fiscal Impact - Wages & Related Benefits 2016 2017
Firefighter/Paramedic 17 $9,961.18 $10,161.49
Firefighter/EMT 1 $547.56 $558.57

18 $10,508.75 $10,720.06

Medicare - 1.75% $183.90 $187.60

WRS - Retirement -  19.98% in 2016 $2,099.65 $2,141.87

Fiscal Impact - Wages & Benefits $12,792.30 $13,049.52

WRS - Employee Contributions (Additional) Hired > 7/2011 Hired < 7/2011 Hired > 7/2011 Hired < 7/2011
6.6% for 6 5.0% & 5.5% Total WRS 6.6% for 6 6.00% Total WRS

Paramedic 17 ($232.04) ($2,114.14) ($2,346.18) ($236.70) ($7,008.95) ($7,245.65)
MPO 1 ($164.96) ($164.96) ($578.35) ($578.35)

18 ($232.04) ($2,279.10) ($2,511.14) ($236.70) ($7,587.30) ($7,824.00)

Annualized Annualized
Fiscal Impact - New Cellphone Stipend (Recall to Duty) 2016 2017
$10/Month in 2016 18 New in 2016 $2,160.00 $3,240.00
$15/Month in 2017 2016 Amount ($2,160.00)

$2,160.00 $1,080.00

Fiscal Impact - PEHP ($14 effective 2016 instead of $9 - Pay Period) 2016 2017
Also fixed amount for Vacation Day of: $16,869.21 $16,869.21
   Firefighter/Paramedic $475.77 Paid in 2015 = ($14,299.44) ($14,299.44)
   Firefighter/EMT $429.12 $2,569.77 $2,569.77

Total Cost $15,011 Total Cost $8,875
Less Lincoln County EMS ($7,505) Less Lincoln County EMS ($4,438)

Net City $7,505 Net City $4,438

2016 2017

12.1.b

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

F
is

ca
l I

m
p

ac
t 

 (
14

28
 :

 F
ir

e 
U

n
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



10-15-2016 

                                         1 
 

 AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
 

 CITY OF MERRILL  
 

And The 
 

MERRILL FIREFIGHTERS 
 

International Association of Firefighters 
 

Local 847 
 

2016-20172014 - 2015 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         2 
 

   
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
                                                                                                                                                Page               
 
ARTICLE  1 - PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT ....................................................................................1 
ARTICLE  2 - RECOGNITION ..........................................................................................................1 
ARTICLE  3 - RESERVATION OF RIGHTS .....................................................................................1 
ARTICLE  4 - UNION SECURITY .....................................................................................................2 
ARTICLE  5 - SUSPENSIONS AND DISMISSALS ..........................................................................2 
ARTICLE  6 - HOURS ......................................................................................................................3 
ARTICLE  7 - SALARIES ..................................................................................................................3 
ARTICLE  8 - RECALL TIME ............................................................................................................3 
ARTICLE  9 - PAY PERIOD .............................................................................................................4 
ARTICLE 10 - LONGEVITY ..............................................................................................................4 
ARTICLE 11 - VACATIONS ..............................................................................................................5 
ARTICLE 12 - UNIFORMS ...............................................................................................................6 
ARTICLE 13 - HOLIDAYS ................................................................................................................6 
ARTICLE 14 - SICK LEAVE .............................................................................................................6 
ARTICLE 15 - FUNERAL LEAVE .....................................................................................................7 
ARTICLE 16 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY .....................................................................8 
ARTICLE 17 - MILITARY SERVICE LEAVE………………………… .................. …………………… 8 
ARTICLE 18 - WORKER'S COMPENSATION .................................................................................9 
ARTICLE 19 - INSURANCE .............................................................................................................9 
ARTICLE 20 - LOSS OR DAMAGE ................................................................................................ 10 
ARTICLE 21 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ................................................................................... 10 
ARTICLE 22 - TEMPORARY SUPERVISION ................................................................................ 11 
ARTICLE 23 - AMENDMENT PROVISIONS .................................................................................. 11 
ARTICLE 24 - SAVINGS CLAUSE ................................................................................................. 12 
ARTICLE 25 - EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS .................................................................................... 11 
ARTICLE 26 - COURT TIME .......................................................................................................... 13 
ARTICLE 27 - NO OTHER AGREEMENT ...................................................................................... 13 
ARTICLE 28 - DURATION .............................................................................................................. 13 
ARTICLE 29 - SEVERANCE PAY .................................................................................................. 13 
ARTICLE 30 - INSTRUCTOR PAY ................................................................................................. 13 
ARTICLE 31 - STAFFING ............................................................................................................... 13 
ARTICLE 32 - RELEASE TIME ...................................................................................................... 14 
ARTICLE 33 - PROMOTIONS ........................................................................................................ 14 
ARTICLE 34 - RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL .................................................................................. 15 
ARTICLE 35 - AMBULANCE RESPONSE AREAS…………………………………………………14 
ARTICLE 36 - PEHP PLAN………………………………………………………………… …………15 
ARTICLE 37 - PAGER USE RECALL FOR DUTY PROGRAM    
……………………………………………………...…..15 
SIGNATURES ................................................................................................................................ 16 
APPENDIX A .................................................................................................................................. 17 
 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         1 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

ARTICLE  1 - PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT 
 
This agreement made and entered into at Merrill, Wisconsin, effective January 1, 20162014, 
according to the provisions of the Municipal Code of Merrill, Wisconsin, and the Wisconsin 
Statutes, by and between the City of Merrill, Wisconsin as Municipal Employer with the Fire Chief 
as its agent, hereinafter referred to as the "City", and Local 847 of the International Association of 
Firefighters, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the "Union".  This agreement is designed to 
promote and maintain the harmonious relationship between the City and the Union, in order that 
more efficient and progressive public service may be rendered. 
 
Now, therefore, the City and the Union have reached this Agreement. 

ARTICLE  2 - RECOGNITION 

A)  The Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive collective bargaining agent excluding the 
Fire Chief and the Shift Commanders for hours of work, and conditions of employment for regular 
Firefighters in the City of Merrill Fire Department.  
 
B) The Union recognizes the Employer's right of management reserved by and 
.. vested in the Fire Chief and the Police and Fire Commission and the Common Council, and 
modified only to the extent of the terms of this agreement. 
 
C) The Employer recognizes that the power to hire, promote, discharge, and suspend Firefighters 
lies only with the Fire Chief and Shift Commanders of the Department and the Police and Fire 
Commission of this City, according to the Wisconsin Statutes 62.13. 
 
D) The City shall have the authority to consolidate the operations of two or more departments 
within the Fire Department and to reorganize the operation within the Fire Department. 
 

ARTICLE  3 - RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 
 
The Union recognizes the right of the City and Chief of the Fire Department to operate and manage 
its affairs in all respects.  The Union recognizes the exclusive right of the Chief of the Fire 
Department to establish departmental rules and procedures. 
 
The City and the Chief of the Fire Department have the exclusive rights and authority to schedule 
overtime work as required in the manner most advantageous to the City, commensurate with the 
applicable Ordinances or Resolutions for overtime compensation, as outlined in this Agreement, to 
members of the bargaining unit. 
 
It is understood by the parties that every duty connected with the Fire Department operations 
enumerated in job descriptions is not always specifically described and it is intended that all such 
duties shall be performed by the employees. 
 
The Chief of the Fire Department and the Police and Fire Commission reserve the right to 
discipline or discharge for cause.  The City reserves the right to lay-off personnel of the 
Department.  The City and Fire Chief of the Fire Department shall determine work schedules 
consistent with this Agreement and establish methods and processes by which such work is 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         2 
 

performed. The City and Chief of the Fire Department shall have the right to transfer employees 
within the Fire Department in a manner most advantageous to the City. 
 
The City, Chief of the Fire Department, and the Police and Fire Commission shall retain all rights 
and authority to which, by law, they are entitled. 
 
The City shall have exclusive authority to transfer any governmental operation now conducted by it 
to another unit of government, providing it meets with the approval of the Common Council upon 
transfer, all agreements are terminated, including this Agreement, as pertaining to personnel of the 
Department affected by the transfer. 
 
The Union recognizes that the City has Statutory and Charter rights and obligations in contracting 
for matters relating to Municipal Operations.  The right of contracting or subcontracting is vested in 
the City. 
 
All Fire Department Employees, hired after January 1, 2008, shall reside within a 15-mile radius of 
the jurisdictional boundaries of the City of Merrill, WI no later than 60 days after completion of their 
probationary period.  
 
The Union pledges cooperation to the increasing of departmental efficiency and effectiveness.  Any 
and all rights concerning the management and direction of the Fire Department and the Firefighters 
shall be exclusively the right to the City and the Chief of the Fire Department, unless otherwise 
provided by the terms of this Agreement as permitted by Law. 
 

ARTICLE  4 - UNION SECURITY 
 
The City agrees to deduct the employee's Union dues from the firefighter’s check each month upon 
written authorization to do by the individual employee. The amount of such dues to be determined 
by the Union.  Said dues shall be paid to Local #847, the International Association of Firefighters, 
AFL-CIO. 
 
The City agrees to allow two members from the Union time off with no loss of pay to attend the 
annual Professional Firefighters of Wisconsin Convention; said two members shall not be 
members of the same shifts.  Any overtime occurring from the convention shall be paid for by the 
City. 
 
The powers, rights, and/or authority claimed by the City are not to be exercised in a manner that 
will undermine the Union, or as an attempt to evade the provisions of this Agreement, or to violate 
the spirit, intent, or purpose of this Agreement. 
 
The City agrees to provide bulletin boards for the Union's use and erect them in locations to be 
agreed upon for posting notices regarding Union affairs, restricted to notices of Union meetings, 
activities, and notices concerning bona fide Union activities such as cooperatives, credit union and 
unemployment compensation information, and other notices concerning Union affairs which are not 
political or controversial in nature. 
 
The City will retain ownership of the bulletin boards and in the event the Union fails to remove 
material in violation of this Article, the City reserves the right to remove such bulletin boards. 
 

ARTICLE  5 - SUSPENSIONS AND DISMISSALS 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         3 
 

 
All newly hired permanent employees shall be considered probationary for a period of one (1) year 
from their date of employment with the Merrill Fire Department.  Probationary employees may be 
discharged upon just cause. 
 
In the event that the Common Council determines that it is necessary to reduce the Fire 
Department personnel, the employees with the least seniority will be laid off first.  No new 
employees shall be hired until all laid-off employees have been given the opportunity to return to 
work. 
 

ARTICLE  6 - HOURS 
 
The City agrees to allow changes in work days or hours between members of the Department.  
Written notification must be given to and approved by the Chief of the Fire Department, or his 
designee , provided the employee substituted is of the same rank or equally qualified.  The City 
shall not be liable for compensation due to exchange of hours or failure of an employee to report 
for work.   
 
As of January 6, 2014, theThe work week for the Merrill Fire Department shall be averaged over 
a 52 week period to a 56-hour duty week.  The schedule shall operate based on a 48/96 hour 
work schedule. for a one-year trial period. Either management or the union reserve the right to 
revert back to previous work schedule if deemed to be in the best interest of the department 
during said trial period. This section shall automatically sunset as of December 31, 2014 unless 
both management and union agree in writing to extend the 48/96 work schedule. 
 

ARTICLE  7 - SALARIES 
 
See Appendix “A” attached. 
 

ARTICLE  8 - RECALL TIME/COMPENSATORY TIME 
 
RECALL TIME: 
 
Recall time is defined as anytime an off-duty firefighter is called in to work, or held over beyond 
their normal workday, until relieved, including scheduled overtime. 
 
The City shall pay recall time at the rate of one and one-half times the employees' regular rate of 
pay, as per schedule, for all hours worked outside of the employee’s regularly scheduled work day. 
The following premiums shall apply: 
 

A. Employees called in for transfers and emergency recalls shall receive additional pay of two 
(2) hours straight time for the call. 

B. Employees called in for other purposes shall receive additional pay of two (2) hours straight 
time for the call. 

 
Overtime shall be rounded up or down to the nearest quarter hour.   
 
Employees held over on emergency call occurring at shift exchange shall be compensated only for 
actual time worked rounded up to the nearest quarter hour.  The two hour call time premium shall 
not apply to training, staff (officer) meetings, and department meetings.  

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         4 
 

 
COMPENSATORY TIME 
 
The parties agree that compensatory time be given in lieu of overtime payment at the discretion of 
the employee as provided in this section.  If compensatory time is given, the same shall be at the 
rate of time and one-half, along with the said conditions of two (2) hours straight time for the call.  
 
Compensatory time may be accumulated up to a maximum of 96 hours and a maximum of 48 
hours annually may be paid out by December 15th.  In addition, a maximum of 48 hours of 
compensatory time may be carried over into the following year. 
 
Compensatory time may only be used in increments of 1/2 hour increments and any part of an 
hour shall be rounded to the next half-hour. i.e. If a firefighter took off of work from 07:00 to 
08:30 it would count as 1 ½ hours in “comp time”.  Furthermore compensatory time may only be 
utilized when the said shift working remains at 5 or more personnel while the “comp time” is 
being used. The fifth man may include management personnel.  Once compensatory time has 
been approved by the Fire Chief or his designee it cannot be revoked for any reason, unless the 
employee voluntarily agrees to reschedule his time at the request of the Fire Chief or his 
designee.  The Fire Chief shall also have the right to call people in off of their compensatory 
time for emergencies as determined by the Fire Chief.  Employee will be reimbursed his/her 
remaining compensatory time plus be compensated for call-inrecall time and either the overtime 
rate or compensatory time. 
 
Compensation time may only be picked after all vacation and/or Kelly days have been offered to 
be scheduled by the entire shift, once all shift members have been offered their chance to pick 
all vacation and/or Kelly days. If an employee voluntarily “passes” or “holds” Kelly days, 
Compensation Time may then be picked.  After the vacation schedule has been established all 
“carried over” comp time may be selected by seniority in a similar fashion as vacation picks.  
After all employees “carrying over” comp time have been given the opportunity to utilize their 
“carry over” time, all other accumulated comp time shall be given on a first come basis, with a 
written request to the Fire Chief or his designee. 
 
The Fire Chief shall post individual compensatory hours used and accrued and total available 
on a monthly basis.  The above shall be posted on the seventh work day of the month, by the 
Fire Chief. 
 
FLSA pay shall not be reduced, when an employee utilizes compensatory time.   
 

ARTICLE  9 - PAY PERIOD 
 
All salaried payroll checks shall be issued bi-weekly. 
 
Holiday pay and other monies, in addition to regular earnings, shall be noted on the employee's 
paychecks. 
 
 

ARTICLE 10 - LONGEVITY 
 
The City shall pay the following longevity payments: 
 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         5 
 

After five (5) years of continuous service, $2.25 per month of paid services retroactive to the first 
day of employment. 
 
Longevity payments will be paid around the first of December of each year. 
 
Retiring employees shall receive payment for longevity prorated on the basis of the percentage 
of calendar years served at the time of retirement. 
 
Longevity shall not be included in base pay for purposes of computing overtime or holiday pay. 

 
ARTICLE 11 - VACATIONS 

 
The vacation policy for the Fire Department shall be as follows: 
 
One (1) year of service    ...........  ...........  ..........  ...........  .......... 3 work days  
Two (2) years of service   ...........  ...........  ..........  ...........  .......... 5 work days  
Seven (7) years of service   ...........  ...........  ..........  ...........  .......... 8 work days  
Twelve (12) years of service   ...........  ...........  ..........  ........... ………10 work days  
Eighteen (18) years of service  .........  ...........  ..........  ........... ………13 work days  
 
        1. The Fire Chief shall establish the vacation posting schedule and Procedure for posting.  

The Fire Chief shall have the right to block out any days due to training when personnel are 
sent to such training, due to absence of personnel due to required summer military service.  
Such blocking shall be for the shift or shifts affected.  The Fire Chief shall also have the 
right to call people in off of their vacations for emergency reasons. 

 
        2. After the schedule has been posted, all employees, except the Fire Chief, and other non-

24hr. shift employees who are eligible for vacation shall indicate on the posting board their 
choice of dates, which choices shall be posted no later than February 28.The choice shall 
be made strictly on the basis on seniority. 

 
        3. There shall not be more than (1) bargaining member employee and/or Shift Commander 

out on each shift on vacation at any time 
 
        4. The bargaining member employees, except the Fire Chief and other non-24hr. shift 

employees shall select their vacation strictly by seniority, as follows: 
 
 (1) On the first round, the employee is entitled to select up to, but not more than, five 

(5) days of vacation, which must be consecutive and may not be split into two (2) 
separate time periods. 

 
 (2) On the second round and all succeeding rounds of vacation selection, the same 

procedure shall apply. 
 
        5. No employee shall be allowed to carry unused vacation time into a succeeding calendar  
           year. 
 
Employees shall be eligible for vacation benefits on their anniversary date and such vacation shall 
be taken within one (1) year following the anniversary date. 
 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         6 
 

New employees shall not be eligible for vacation benefits until they have completed six- months of 
service.  Each year on or before October 15, the employer shall post a list of the employees 
indicating their anniversary date of employment during that upcoming year, and the number of work 
days of vacation they shall be eligible for subsequent to that anniversary date.  The employee unit 
shall have fifteen (15) days after the posting of such list to object to the employer’s calculation of 
anniversary date, and eligible work days of vacation.  In the absence of any such objection the list 
is deemed accurate. 
 
All employees with at least one (1) year of service will be allowed one Kelly Day per year.  This 
Kelly day may be picked any time after vacations are picked.  Such approval will not be 
unreasonably withheld. A 2nd Kelly Day will be allowed after 18 years of service.  
 

ARTICLE 12 - UNIFORMS 
 

The City agrees to provide a clothing allowance in the amount of $400.00 per firefighter per year, 
paid in a lump sum each year in January. Newly hired firefighters shall receive an additional one-
time $350 allotment. If new employees quit or do not finish out the first full year, the uniforms shall 
be the property of the City. 
 
The annual clothing allowance shall be prorated for new employees based upon the number of full 
months remaining in the year of hire. 
 
The City agrees to furnish turnout gear including boots, turnout coats, bunker pants, gloves, 
helmets, hoods, and Department badges and dress hat. 
 

ARTICLE 13 - HOLIDAYS 
 

All employees shall be granted ten and one-half (10 1/2) paid holidays.  The actual date the holiday 
falls on will be recognized as the paid holiday.  The legal holidays are as follows: 
 
December 24      New Year’s Day 
One-half day for December 31    Memorial Day 
Christmas Day (December 25)    Labor Day 
Independence Day (July 4)     Easter 
Friday (following Thanksgiving Day)    Thanksgiving Day 
Good Friday 
 
These holidays shall be compensated at the rate of one (1) regular days pay.  A regular days pay 
shall be calculated as follows:  Annual salary divided by 165 daily rate.  Example:  $16,000.00 
divided by 165.00 = $96.97 per day.  Holiday pay is to be paid monetarily.  Holiday pay is to be 
paid around December 1. 
 

ARTICLE 14 - SICK LEAVE 
 

A. Sick leave shall be administered by the Fire Chief. 
 
Sick leave shall accumulate at the rate of one (1) day for each month of service in the calendar 
year and may be accumulated to an unlimited number of hours.  Sick leave shall be utilized per 
City Policy as attached as Appendix B. 
 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         7 
 

B. Employee to notify supervisor. 
 
Any employee who is not available for work shall notify the firefighter’s supervisor at least 6030 
minutes prior to the commencement of the firefighter’s shift of duty of such unavailability.  Upon the 
firefighter’s first failure to so notify the firefighter’s supervisor of the firefighter’s unavailability, a 
reprimand shall be noted in the employee’s file.   In the event an employee accumulates a second 
failure in a three (3) year period, that employee shall forfeit one-half  (½) day pay, as calculated on 
the basis on the firefighter’s annual salary divided by 2920 hours multiplied by 12.  In the event an 
employee does not accumulate a second failure in a three (3) year period, any reprimand occurring 
more than three (3) years prior shall be removed from the file of the employee, and the employer 
will destroy any record of reference to said reprimand. 
 
C. Accrued sick leave credit. 
 
All employees covered by the agreement who actually retire from the City service and apply within 
sixty (60) days of the last day paid for a retirement annuity from the Wisconsin Retirement Fund 
shall have their sick leave credits from the time of retirement converted to a monetary value which 
the City shall deposit in Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP). 
 
Upon retirement the City shall deposit the employees accumulated, unused sick leave (1300 hours 
maximum) calculated as per current fire department formula (52 weeks x 40 hours per week = 
2080 hours Base wage divided by 2080 hours = hourly rate.  Hourly rate x 1300 sick leave hours = 
Dollar amount to transfer to PEHP). 
   
If an employee retires before his/her 62nd birthday, but after his/her 50th birthday with adequate 
years of service, the employee may then remain a member of the City’s insurance group until age 
sixty-five (65).  Retired is defined for purposes of this section, as drawing a monthly pension check 
from the Wisconsin Retirement Fund.  The employee shall be responsible for the entire premium 
as charged to the City for such insurance; the amount will be deducted from the total amount due 
the employee from the funds available from the converted sick leave accumulation.   
 
The maximum number of hours an employee will be entitled to so convert is a total of 1300 
hours. 
 
D. Sick Leave Credit: 
 
Firefighters shall receive one personal (Kelly) day off when the firefighter does not use sick leave 
during a calendar year and after twenty (20) years of service will receive two Kelly days off when 
the firefighter does not use sick leave during a calendar year.  Said Kelly day(s) will be granted in 
the year following the year in which it was earned. 
 
E. Donation Of Time: 
 
Firefighters will be allowed to donate vacation time, Kelly days, and/or comp. time to other 
firefighters who have exhausted their sick leave and are in need of additional time off. 
 

ARTICLE 15 - FUNERAL LEAVE 
 
Funeral leave shall be utilized as per City policy as attached as Appendix C.  granted to employees 
in accordance with the following provisions.   

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         8 
 

 
Immediate family: in the event of a death in an employee's immediate family, an employee may be 
excused from work for up to three working days without loss of pay to attend the funeral and to 
attend to matters of the estate.  Immediate family is defined as the employee's spouse, child/step-
child, parent, brother, sister, mother-in-law, father-in-law, or any person who has resided with the 
employee, as a family member, immediately preceding the person's death.   
 
Extended family: In the event of the death in the extended family of an employee, the employee 
may request funeral leave from the Fire Chief or his designee and upon such request be granted 
funeral leave of up to one working day for travel, tending to family consolation and/or attending the 
funeral.  Extended family includes the employee's aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, spouse of the 
employee's siblings, the siblings and their spouses of the employee's spouse, and grandparents.  
Attendance other than family: Employees wishing to attend the funeral of a friend shall use earned 
vacation.  Employees shall be allowed to reschedule vacation for this purpose, provided that 
vacation is available on the day requested in accordance with Article 11 of this agreement.   
 

ARTICLE 16 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY 
 
Request for leave of absence without pay for justifiable reasons shall be made by written 
application on a form provided by the Personnel Officer and be submitted at least two (2) days prior 
to the anticipated leave. 
 
A) For a leave not to exceed three (3) consecutive work days, the firefighter’s request shall be 
made to and approved by the Fire Chief. 
 
B) For a leave in excess of three (3) work days, the firefighter shall make the firefighter’s 
request to the Personnel Director after notifying the Fire Chief. 
 
Failure to comply with the requirements of this Article shall result in disciplinary action. 
 
The Fire Chief or Officer in charge may grant emergency leaves of short duration for matters of 
urgent nature. 
 
A maximum of two (2) members of the Bargaining Committee who are on duty when a meeting 
between the City and Union is called shall be permitted to attend with no loss of pay.  
 
Any employee entitled to vote in any public election shall be afforded time to do so in accordance 
with the provisions of Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ARTICLE 17 – MILITARY SERVICE LEAVE 
 
 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         9 
 

a) While on active military duty or training of 6-months or less, the Employer shall make up 
the difference between the military compensation received and the employee’s current 
salary. 

b) In addition to the above, employees requesting unpaid leave of absence for military 
service are covered consistent with Federal Law. 

 
ARTICLE 18 – WORKER’S COMPENSATION 

 
It is expected that members of the Fire Department shall exercise sound safety practices in the 
performance of their duties.  However, the nature of emergency duties, when protecting the 
interests of the general public, may place them in unforeseen and/or unpredictable hazardous 
situations.  Therefore, the members of the Fire Department who contract a disease or are injured 
while on duty are covered. 
 
The City also agrees that if a firefighter is hurt on the job or contracts an employee related disease, 
the City will pay the difference between the worker’s compensation and the firefighters pay 
providing the employee has sick leave credits, and such time be counted against the firefighter’s 
sick leave as it is covered under worker’s compensation. 
 
In cases involving third-party liability, Chapter 102.29 of the Wisconsin Statutes will apply. 
 

 
ARTICLE 19 - INSURANCE 

 
A. Health Insurance  
 
For 20162014 Firefighters shall continue to pay 10.00%8.98% of the health insurance premiums as 
an employee contribution. For 2017, Eeffective December 28, 201629, 2014, the Firefighters shall 
pay 10.5%9.5% of the health insurance premium if the premium to the City increases by 6% or 
less, for 2015, and 11.00%2015, 10% if the premium increase to the City is greater than 6% and up 
to 12%, and 11.50%10.5% if the increase in premiums to the City is greater than 12%. If the 
premium for non-union employees remains at 8.98% in 2015, the same rate shall apply to union 
personnel 
The premium for 2017 shall be the same rate as non-union employees. 
 
The Employee shall be responsible for the single or family annual deductible. 
 
The City shall contribute the same amount in HSA accounts for fire union personnel, single and 
family plans as that contributed for non-union employees or other union employees. 
 
In 2014, the City shall contribute $760.83 for a single plan and $1,521.66 for a family plan as seed 
money for the HSA enrollees, half to be paid Dec. 30, 2013 and half to be paid June 30, 2014. In 
2015, the City shall contribute the same amount for fire union personnel single and family plans 
as that contributed for non-union employees. 
 
B. Life Insurance 
 
The State Life Insurance is based on salary earned and age of the employee.  Employees covered 
by this contract shall be insured for an amount double their annual salary.  
 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         10 
 

The City agrees to pay its share of the cost, and in addition, one hundred percent (100%) of the 
employee’s contribution in the State Life Insurance Program.  An employee not wishing to 
participate in the life insurance program must sign a waiver of insurance form available in the 
Clerk-Treasurer’s Office. 
 
C. Wisconsin Retirement 
 
For employees hired before July 1, 2011, in addition to the City’s share, the City agrees to pay the 
employees share of Wisconsin Retirement Fund contributions, except: 
 
For 2016 
12/28/2015   Same 5.0% WRS as 2015 (except for employees hired after 6-30-2011) 
06-27-2015   Increase to 5.5% WRS (except for employees hired after 6-30-2011) 
 
For 2017 
12/26/2016   Increase to 6.0% WRS (except for employees hired after 6/30/2011) 
 
For 2014 
12/30/2013   Same 4.0% WRS  as 2013 (except for employees hired after 6/30/2011) 
06/30/2014   Increase to 4.5% WRS (except for employees hired after 6/30/2011) 
 
For 2015 
12/29/2014   Increase to 5.0% WRS (except for employees hired after 6/30/2011)  
 
For employees hired after June 30, 2011, the employee shall pay the entire employee required 
share to the Wisconsin Retirement Fund. 
 

ARTICLE 20 - LOSS OR DAMAGE 
Employees shall not be charged for any loss or damage of City owned property or material unless 

clear proof of negligencenegligent or maliciousness is shown. 
 

ARTICLE 21 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 

Definition of a Grievance: 
 
The procedure under this Article provides an orderly meeting to present and settle grievances (not 
involving wage rates and hours of work as such) which may arise between the Union employees 
and the City, as to the meaning or application of or compliance with the provisions of this 
agreement.  It is a further purpose of this grievance procedure to assure observance of the terms 
and work relationship set forth to this agreement.  The Grievance procedure is available to the 
Union employee and is limited to matters covered by this agreement. 
 
The purpose of the Grievance Procedure shall be to settle all grievances between Fire Department 
and Union employees or City and Union or any member thereof. 
 
The steps of the procedure shall be as follows: 
 
Step 1.  The aggrieved member, with Union representation, shall within (5) days after the 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         11 
 

occurrence of the grievance (exclusive of Saturday, Sunday and Holidays), meet with the Officer 
on duty at the time of the alleged grievance.  If said meeting and discussion does not resolve the 
matter within ten (10) days...it may proceed to the next step. 
 
Step 2.  If the grievance is not settled at the first step of the grievance procedure, the 
grievance shall be represented in writing to the Fire Chief.  The Fire Chief shall, within ten (10) 
days (Saturday, Sunday and Holidays excluded), hold an informal meeting with the aggrieved 
employee, the Officer in charge, and Union representatives.  If the grievance is not resolved to the 
satisfaction of all parties within ten (10) days (Saturday, Sunday and Holidays excluded), either 
party may proceed to the next step. 
 
Step 3.   If the grievance is not settled at the second step of the grievance procedure, the 
Union, within ten (10) days (Saturday, Sunday and Holidays excluded), shall submit the 
determinations made to the Personnel Director.  The grievance shall be submitted in writing and 
the Personnel & Finance Committee shall meet with Union representative and any parties involved 
in relation to the facts surrounding said grievance to make a determination of said grievance. 
 
Step 4.   If the grievance is not settled at the third step of the grievance procedure, the Union, 
within ten (10) days (Saturday, Sunday and Holidays excluded), shall submit the determinations 
made to the Personnel & Finance Committee.  The grievance shall be submitted in writing and the 
Personnel & Finance Committee shall meet with Union representative and any parties involved in 
relation to the facts surrounding said grievance to make a determination of said grievance. 
 
Step 5.   If the grievance is not settled at the third step of the grievance procedure, the Union, 
within ten (10) days of the meeting of the Personnel & Finance Committee, shall submit the 
grievance to an arbitrator.  The arbitrator shall be selected by the Wisconsin Employment Relations 
Commission.  The decision of the arbitrator will be final and binding on all parties except for judicial 
review.  The cost of the arbitrator will be borne equally by the City and the Union.  
 
The City and the Union may waive any of the steps of the grievance procedure pursuant to mutual 
agreement. 
 
The Union may appoint representatives of the Union and shall inform the City of the names of the 
individuals so appointed and of any change thereafter made in such appointments.  The City will 
allow the representatives the necessary time to process grievance during the course of the duty 
day, as long as it does not interfere with their regular work responsibilities. 
 

ARTICLE 22 - TEMPORARY SUPERVISION 
 

A pool of six (6) members established by criteria created by the Fire Chief, all other things being 
equal seniority shall prevail,seniority, excluding Shift Commanders consisting of Firefighters with at 
least five years seniority shall be established.  Said members shall take and pass a minimum Fire 
Officer Certification Training course at no cost to employee.  This pool of employees shall be 
eligible to work in the temporary position of supervisory capacity in the absence of such permanent 
officer of a shift.  Any firefighters acting as such officers shall be responsible for all the normal 
duties of that officer, and shall be responsible for the professional performance thereof and receive 
certification pay of $200.00 annually. This pay will be received in the first pay period after 
successful completion of the course for the first year and with clothing allowance in the successive 
years. Those individuals serving in a supervisory capacity in the absence of regular supervisory 
personnel shall be compensated for at the rate at the difference between a Firefighter/Paramedic 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         12 
 

andof a Fire Captain when serving in that capacity. 
 

ARTICLE 23 - AMENDMENT PROVISIONS 
 

This agreement is subject to amendments, alterations, or additions only by subsequent written 
agreement between and executed by the City and the Union where mutually agreeable.  The 
waiver of any breach, term, or condition of this agreement by either party shall not constitute a 
precedent in the future enforcement of all its terms and conditions. 
 

ARTICLE 24 - SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 

If any article or section of this agreement or any addendum thereto should be held invalid by 
operation of Law of by any tribunal competent jurisdiction or if compliance with or enforcement of 
any article of section should be retained by such tribunal, the remainder of this agreement and 
addendum shall not be affected thereby, and the parties shall enter into immediate collective 
bargaining negotiations for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such 
article or section. 
 

ARTICLE 25 – EDUCATIONAL/TRAINING BENEFITS 
 

Firefighters with at least one (1) year of service shall receive pay for an educational incentive 
program.  Credits earned by Firefighters under this incentive must be toward an associate degree 
(or better) in Fire/Public Service/EMS Administration, Fire Prevention Technology, Fire Science, 
Education or other related accredited programs.  The City will pay Firefighters on the following 
schedule: 
 
 Half completion of an associate’s degree  
  (minimum of 30 credits):     $15 per month 
 
 Completion of an associate’s degree  
  (minimum of 60 credits):     $30 per month 
 
 Completion of a Bachelor’s degree 
  (minimum of 120 credits)     $60 per month 
 
In order to receive the monthly benefit provided for under this Article, the degree course work must 
be offered by an accredited technical college or university.  In addition the employee must obtain a 
pass grade for a pass/fail course of a “C” grade or better for a graded course to receive credit for 
the course work.  Payments of benefits under this Article shall be made in a single lump sum 
payment annually (i.e., $180 for a ½ an associate’s degree; and $360 for a full associate’s degree 
as provided above).  Said payments shall be made no later than April 1 of each year and shall be 
based on credits obtained as of December 31 of the previous year.  Proof of credit completion shall 
be based on an official transcript from the institution(s) granting the credit.  
 

A. Mandatory Training: 
The City will pay for mandatory training. Mandatory training is anytime an employee is 
required to attend a class, training session or conference in order to maintain current 
rank, license or any other reason mandated by the Chief or the City. Class time will be 
paid at the overtime rate, if applicable, and enroute travel time will be paid at the 
straight-time rate. At the discretion of the employee, compensation may be at the 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         13 
 

overtime rate or compensatory time. The City will notify employees a minimum of 14 
days prior to the training and will include an alternative date for training as not to require 
employees to attend if on vacation, Kelly days, comp-time, family leave or sick days. If 
an alternative date cannot be accommodated, said employee would not be required to 
attend training, unless license requirement is compromised. All training will include 
reimbursement for books, class fees/tuition, class time, andmeals, mileage.,  Meals and 
lodging will be reimbursed if further than 50 miles from the Fire Station., and tuition. If 
city vehicle is available it shall be used. 

 
B. Approved Training: 

The City will pay for approved training, approved training will include seminars, 
conference and educational classes which are professionally related in accordance with 
the Fire Chief. Once training is approved by the Fire Chief, said employee(s) cannot be 
recalled for duty if notified less than seven (7) days from the date of training. The 
Department will provide duty time coverage; no duty trades shall be required. Comp-time 
at the straight time rate shall be paid to the attendee for off duty attendance. Registration 
fees, lodging, meal reimbursement, and travel costs may be paid by the Department 
according to city policy.  

 
C. Voluntary Training: 

Defined as those training opportunities, which the Firefighter may attend on a voluntary 
basis. The Department may provide duty time coverage depending upon manpower 
availability; a duty trade may be required. No overtime shall be paid to the firefighter for 
off-duty attendance. Registration fees, lodging, meal reimbursement, and travel costs 
may be paid by the department according to city policy. 

 
Final Determination of the level of the training shall be the responsibility of the Training 
Officer/Fire Chief based upon available funds. 
 
Certification Pay For maintaining current EMT Technician Certification, each firefighter shall 
receive $100 annually pursuant to above schedule.  For maintaining current EMT-Paramedic, each 
EMT – Paramedic shall receive $500. Annual certification pay shall be prorated for new employees 
based upon the number of full months remaining in the year of hire, 

 
ARTICLE 26 - COURT TIME 

 
Firefighters that are authorized by the Fire Chief, the Fire Chief’s designee, or have been 
subpoenaed, will be paid for the court time and for deposition at the rate of time and one-half of the 
employee’s normal hourly rate.  This overtime rate will only be paid if said firefighter must appear in 
court when he or she is off duty and when the City of Merrill or the State of Wisconsin are parties to 
the law suit.  Overtime shall be paid to retirees required to attend Court. 
 

 
ARTICLE 27 - NO OTHER AGREEMENT 

 
The City agrees not to enter into any other agreements, written or verbal, with firefighters 
individually or collectively which in any way conflicts with the provisions of this agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 28 - DURATION 
 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         14 
 

This agreement shall be effective as of January 1, 20162014, and shall remain in full force until its 
expiration date, December 31, 20172015. 
 
A) On or before July 15, 20172015, either party hereto may notify the other party in writing of 
its desire to negotiate the terms and provisions of a successor agreement. 
 
B) Negotiations shall begin as close to August 15, as a mutually agreeable date can be set 
(this may be extended by the parties) and will attempt to reach an agreement by October 15, 
however, this date can be extended by mutual agreement. 
 
C) If a satisfactory agreement cannot be reached by October 15, or shortly thereafter, it is 
agreed the parties will proceed to mediation provided by the Wisconsin Employment Relations 
Commission. 
 
If neither party hereto gives notice to the other party of its desire to negotiate a successor 
agreement prior to the expiration date of this agreement as above provided, this agreement shall 
automatically be renewed for successive one (1) year terms thereafter. 
 

ARTICLE 29 - SEVERANCE PAY 
 

Severance pay will be paid for a period of 60 days if the City lays off any personnel permanently. 
 

ARTICLE 30 - INSTRUCTOR PAY 
 

At the discretion of the Fire Chief, up to six (6) members within the Department shall receive 
instructor pay of $300.00 per year for conducting training programs for the public and City 
employees during the instructor’s normal working hours.  Instructors shall consist of up to three (3) 
State Certified Fire Instructors with the remaining positions to be filled by Certified CPR/First Aid 
Instructors by criteria established by the Fire Chief, all other things being equal seniority shall 
prevail.seniority.  An individual is only eligible for one certification pay of $300.00 per year.  
 

ARTICLE 31 - SPECIAL SERVICE RATE 
 
Merrill Firefighters Local 847 understands the importance of providing Emergency Medical 
Services during special events within the City of Merrill or Lincoln County. To that end, Local 847 
agrees to a Dedicated Standby Service rate per Appendix A for their members, with a three hour 
minimum, per event within the prescribed service area. Local 847, for the benefit of the community, 
agrees to waive the standard call time payment. The contracting entity must give 72 hour notice of 
the date, times and location of the event. This special service pay rate shall increase during the 
term of this contract at the same rate as regular hourly pay.   
 

ARTICLE 32 - RELEASE TIME - TRAINING 
 

Whenever the Merrill Fire Department is staffed with a crew of six (6) or more personnel, crew 
member(s) shall be released to attend job related training as approved by the Fire Chief. Release 
time shall be awarded on the basis of seniority with the most senior employee/student given the 
first option to claim release time.  Once scheduled, release time may be revoked by the Fire Chief 
with at least 24 hours advanced notice or at any time in the event of an emergency.  

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         15 
 

  
 ARTICLE 33 - PROMOTIONS 
 
Promotions within the Union shall be made in accordance with the Fire Chief’s recommendation of 
the most senior qualified candidate.  The Fire Chief has the right to determine qualifications. 
 
 ARTICLE 34 - RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL 
 
Union employment opportunities involving overtime called in from the twelve (12) hour call list and 
stand-by list shall be offered to Union employees first,.  The offer shall be made in accordance with 
the terms of this contract.  In the event no Union employee accepts the offered overtime by 9 p.m. 
the night prior to the shift to be filled, then the offer may be extended to a nonunion employee.  
Nothing in this article shall be construed to require the employer to fill a vacancy or otherwise 
employ anyone.  
 

ARTICLE 35 – NEW EMPLOYEES 
 
Newly hired employees agree to remain with the Merrill Fire Department for three (3) years or 
more. During that period of time, the Merrill Fire Department will commit to providing the employee 
with the required training and all other benefits provided by the existing labor contract. Additional 
specialized training will also be provided, as deemed necessary by the Chief of the Fire 
Department. 
 
If employment with the City of Merrill Fire Department is voluntarily terminated prior to the 
completion of the three (3) year period the employee hereby agrees to repay the City of Merrill 
costs associated with outside training received, all equipment issued that cannot be reused, and all 
costs associated with the hiring of the employee, such as the cost of a background check, drug 
screening, medical costs, physical and psychological expenses, written examination and clothing 
allowance. 
 
The repayment shall be pro-rated over the course of the three year period based on the following 
schedule. If the employee leaves voluntarily during the first year of employment they shall repay all 
costs. If the employee leaves voluntarily during the second year of employment the employee shall 
repay two-thirds of the costs. If the employee leaves voluntarily during the third year of employment 
the employee shall repay one-third of the costs. The repayment of costs will be pro-rated based 
upon the date of issuance in one year increments. 
 

 
ARTICLE 36 – PEHP PLAN 

 
The City of Merrill agrees to participation in the Life Insurance and Health Plan for Collectively 
Bargained Public Employee (variable employee benefit agreement – “Plan”); the City will 
contribute the following into each bargaining unit employee’s account: $7.00 per pay period into 
each bargaining unit employee’s account beginning December 30, 2013 and $9.00 per pay 
period beginning December 29, 2014. 
 
Paramedic/Firefighter  $14.00 per pay period, plus an additional annual contribution of 
$575.77, which consists of the 2015 daily rate ($475.77) plus $100.00. 
 
EMT/Firefighter  $14.00 per pay period, plus an additional annual contribution of 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         16 
 

$529.12, which consists of the 2015 daily rate ($429.12) plus $100.00. 
 
The City shall contribute for each bargaining unit employee an amount equal to the monetary value 
of one vacation day’s wages plus an additional annual contribution of $100.00. 

 
ARTICLE 37 – RECALL FOR DUTYPAGER USE PROGRAM  

 
RECALL  PROGRAM 

 
1. All Firefighters will provide, regularly carry, and maintain a cellular telephone.  The 

cellular telephone number will be provided to the Fire Chief or his designee.  All 
Firefighters will notify the Fire Chief or his designee of any changes in that telephone 
number. All Firefightersare expected to carry the cell phone to receive notifications and 
respond to the Recall for Duty Program when able.   

 
1.2. In 2016, Firefighters shall receive pay for cell phone use at the rate of $10.00 per 

month effective January 1, 2016.  In 2017 Firefighters shall receive $15.00 per month if 
their response has been the stipulated 25% in 2016.   
 

3. Firefighter shall receive $15.00 per month, if firefighter responds to at least 25% of all 
recalls during the previous one year period.  If the firefighter does not respond to 25% of 
all recalls, no payments will be made the following year (2017).      

 
4. Said payments shall be made no later than April 1 of each year, and shall be paid with 

the Education/Training benefit. 
 

 
1. The City shall purchase and provide each Local 847 member with a complete pager set 

at no expense to the bargaining unit member.  The City shall maintain said pager sets; 
as long as the pager program is in effect. 

1. In the event of immediate staffing needs, e.g. serious house fire, serious vehicular 
accident, tornado, etc. the City is free to immediately page Department personnel to fill 
staffing needs associated with said emergency 

2. In the event of a non-emergency staffing need, e.g. ambulance transfer, sick leave fill 
in, etc. the City shall first attempt to fill the vacancy by telephoning full time employees 
according to the Merrill Fire Department Call list.  If the City is unable to fill the vacancy 
from the call list it may then page Department members to fill the vacancy. 

3. Participation in the pager program by Department members shall be voluntary and no 
Department member is obligated to carry their pager or to respond to a page. 

4. In the event a staffing need is not filled with an initial page, the City may issue a second 
page at which time all Department members receiving the page shall endeavor to make 
themselves available to respond. 

5. Department members who are under the influence of alcohol or otherwise impaired are 
prohibited from responding to a page. 

6. Department members who respond to a page shall be compensated according to the 
terms of the collective bargaining agreement. 

7. Department members shall not be responsible for damage to pagers unless such 
damage is the result of the malicious and willful action of Department member. 

8. As long as participation in the pager program is voluntary on the part of Department  
members, Department members shall not receive premium pay for carrying pagers. 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         17 
 

 
 
 
SIGNATURES: 
 
 
DATED:____________________________ 
 
FOR THE UNION: 
 
 
________________________________ 
President,  
 
 
________________________________ 
Vice President  
 

DATED:____________________________ 
 
FOR THE CITY: 
 
 
________________________________  
Mayor, William Bialecki 
 
 
________________________________  
City Administrator, David Johnson 
 
 
 
 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         18 
 

Need from KU 
 
APPENDIX A 

 
2014 – 20152016 - 2017 SALARY SCHEDULE 

 
 

 
12/28/15 06/27/16 12/26/16 06/26/17 

Increase 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 

Paramedic/Firefighter $58,887.21 $59,476.08 $60,070.84 $60,671.55 

EMT/Firefighter $55,028.71 $55,579.00 $56,134.79 $56,696.14 

Special Service Rate $26.27 $26.53 $26.80 $27.07 
 
 

 12/30/13 06/30/14 12/29/14 06/29/15 
Increase 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 

Paramedic/Firefighter $56,589.46 $57,155.35 $57,726.90 $58,304.17 

MPO/Firefighter $52,881.51 $53,410.32 $53,944.43 $54,483.87 

Special Service Rate $25.25 $25.50 $25.76 $26.01 
 
 
New Hire Schedule will be as follows: 
 
A New Hire starts at  85% of wages of whichever classification they are assigned.   
 
After one (1) complete year they shall receive  90% of wages of whichever classification they are 
assigned.   
 
After two (2) complete `years they shall receive  95% of wages of whichever classification they are 
assigned.   
 
After three (3) complete years they shall receive  100% of wages of whichever classification they 
are assigned.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         19 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

12-3 SICK LEAVE.  Sick leave for all regular employees is accumulated at a rate of 
one work day for each month of continuous service.  Upon termination of an employee, any 
accumulated sick leave, except for retirement or employee death as provided below, is forfeited 
and not paid. 
 

12-3-1  Sick leave is intended for the use of employees in the event of personal 
illness, bodily injury, exposure to a contagious disease, or in the event of 
an unexpected serious illness or accident involving a member of the 
employee's immediate family.  

 
Unpaid leave must be granted for any of the following reasons: to care for 
the employee’s child after birth, or placement for adoption or foster care; 
to care for the employee’s spouse, son or daughter or parent who has a 
serious health condition; or for a serious health condition that makes the 
employee unable to perform the employee’s job. 

 
Sick leave can be used for doctor or dental appointments which cannot be 
scheduled during an employee's regular time off.   

 
12-3-2  Newly hired employees are not eligible to use any sick leave until they 

have completed six months of service. 
 

12-3-3  A Department head may require the employee to submit a medical 
statement, stating the specific illness, period of treatment, and date that the 
employee may return to work from sick leave when it occurs before or 
after a holiday or other scheduled days off, for sick leave in excess of 
three days or when an employee has a record of repetitious usage of short 
amounts of sick leave over an extended period of time. The department 
head may require an employee to take a medical examination upon 
returning from sick leave or on such occasions that it is in the best interest 
of the City. The medical examination is given by the City's Health Officer 
and paid for by the City. 

 
12-3-4  Employees who are going to be absent from duty for reasons which entitle 

them to sick leave must notify their department head or supervisor one 
hour before the start of scheduled work hours when possible. 

 
12-3-5   The Department head may investigate the alleged illness of an employee 

absent from work on sick leave. False or fraudulent use of sick leave may 
result in disciplinary action against the employee, up to and including 
dismissal. 

 
12-3-6  Sick leave may be used in no less than one half hour units. 

 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         20 
 

12-3-7  A regular employee who moves from one department to another by 
transfer, promotion, or demotion may have his/her total sick leave credits 
transferred to the new department. Upon retirement employees eligible for 
a pension under the Wisconsin Retirement System and the employee’s 
spouse may remain a member of the City's Group Health Insurance until 
the employee or the employee’s spouse is eligible for Medicare, 
whichever occurs later.  Said employee is responsible for the entire 
premium as deducted from the total amount due the employee from the 
funds available from the converted sick leave accumulation.  In the event 
that the retired employee exhausts the converted sick leave benefit, the 
retired employee shall pay any premiums which come due within 30 
calendar days.  Failure to pay premium within 30 calendar days will result 
in group health insurance program cancellation. For purposes of this 
section, "retire" is defined as drawing a monthly pension check from the 
Wisconsin Retirement System. (Said payments do not include any 
separation benefits). 

 
12-3-8  Sick leave accumulation upon retirement is set at a maximum of the 

employee’s total accumulated sick leave hours or 1,300 hours, whichever 
is less.   Accumulated sick leave may be converted to a sick leave cash 
equivalent based on the employee’s hourly rate at the time of retirement 
times the sick leave accumulation.  The sick leave cash equivalent may 
only be used to purchase health insurance coverage under the City’s health 
insurance plan, or as a cash payout. 

 
12-3-9  Sick leave accumulation upon employee death before retirement is set at a 

maximum of the employee’s total accumulated sick leave hours or 1,300 
hours, whichever is less.  Accumulated sick leave may be converted to a 
sick leave cash equivalent based on the employee’s hourly rate at the time 
of death times the sick leave accumulation.  The sick leave cash equivalent 
may only be paid as a cash payout to the estate of the deceased employee.  
The effective date of this provision is April 1, 2013. (Resol 2289 dated 2-12-13) 

 
   Employees who retire for medical/disability reasons or when the WRS allows for early 

window period retirements shall not be subject to this restriction.  Employees eligible for 
a cash payout must make an irrevocable election prior to retiring to accept either 
extended health insurance coverage or the cash payout.  The sick leave cash equivalent is 
taxed in accordance with State and Federal law, as applicable.  In the event that the 
retired employee leaves the City’s health plan before exhausting the sick leave cash 
equivalent, or chooses not to remain a part of the City’s health care plan after retirement, 
any amount in the retired employee’s sick leave cash equivalent is forfeited to the City, 
provided that the employee was not eligible for a cash payout as provided above.  Failure 
by the retired employee to notify the Personnel Department in writing of the employee’s 
desire to remain a part of the City’s health insurance plan before the retired employee’s 
coverage lapses shall result in the forfeiture of the retired employee’s sick leave cash 
equivalent. 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



10-15-2016 

                                         21 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

12-4  FUNERAL LEAVE.  Funeral leave is granted to all regular full-time and, to 
regular part-time employees in accordance with the following provisions.  
 

12-4-1   Immediate Family. In the event of a death in an employee's immediate 
family, an employee may be excused from work for up to three working 
days without loss of pay to attend the funeral and to attend to matters of 
the estate.  

 
 (a) Immediate family is defined as spouse, child/step-child, spouses of 

children/step-children, parent, brother, sister, mother-in-law, 
father-in-law, or any person who has resided with the employee 
immediately preceding the person's death. 

 
12-4-2  Extended Family. In the event of the death in the extended family of an 

employee, the employee may request funeral leave from the department 
head, or if the employee is a department head, the Mayor, and upon such 
request be granted funeral leave of up to one working day for attending the 
funeral. 

 
 (a)  Extended family includes the aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, brother-

in-law, sister in law, grandchildren, and grandparents.  
 

12-4-3  Attendance other than Family. Employees wishing to attend the funeral of 
a friend must use earned vacation. 

 
 

12.1.c

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

20
16

-2
01

7 
 (

14
28

 :
 F

ir
e 

U
n

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



12
.2

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
08

Attachment: Resoltuion on Wi Fi Internet  (1417 : Resolution on WI-FI/Internet expenditures)



12
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
09

Attachment: BackGround Info Wi Fi  (1417 : Resolution on WI-FI/Internet expenditures)



12
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
10

Attachment: BackGround Info Wi Fi  (1417 : Resolution on WI-FI/Internet expenditures)



12
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
11

Attachment: BackGround Info Wi Fi  (1417 : Resolution on WI-FI/Internet expenditures)



12
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
12

Attachment: BackGround Info Wi Fi  (1417 : Resolution on WI-FI/Internet expenditures)



12
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
13

Attachment: BackGround Info Wi Fi  (1417 : Resolution on WI-FI/Internet expenditures)



12
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
14

Attachment: BackGround Info Wi Fi  (1417 : Resolution on WI-FI/Internet expenditures)



12
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
15

Attachment: BackGround Info Wi Fi  (1417 : Resolution on WI-FI/Internet expenditures)



12
.3

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
16

Attachment: Resolution - 900 E. 1st Street  (1429 : Resolution Alamsa - 900 E. 1st Street)



12
.3

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
17

Attachment: Background 900 E. 1st Street  (1429 : Resolution Alamsa - 900 E. 1st Street)



12
.3

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
18

Attachment: Background 900 E. 1st Street  (1429 : Resolution Alamsa - 900 E. 1st Street)



 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 

CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 2015- 
Introduced: November 10, 2015 
1st Reading: November 10, 2015 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
RECOMMENDED FOR PASSAGE   
 

A CHARTER ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Pursuant to Sec. 62.09(1)(b), Wis. Stats., the Common Council of the 
City of Merrill hereby elects to amend the Municipal Code, by removing the Street 
Commissioner as an elected Officer, and that Office is eliminated.  All duties 
previously performed by the Street Commissioner shall be performed by a Public 
Works Director/City Engineer, or Street Superintendent, as directed by the Board of 
Public Works. 

Section 2. This charter ordinance shall become effective upon the retirement of the 
current Street Commissioner, on December 31, 2015. 

Section 3. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 
and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this ordinance. It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that 
this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal provision had not been 
included or any illegal application had not been made. 

Section 4. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and 
resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
from and after its passage and publication. 

 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published:_____________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A CHARTER ORDINANCE: From the Committee of 
the Whole 

 
Re: Eliminating the Street Commissioner as an 

elected officer    

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ar

te
r 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 E

lim
in

at
in

g
 e

le
ct

ed
 S

tr
ee

t 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

  (
14

02
 :

 C
h

ar
te

r 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 e
lim

in
at

in
g

 t
h

e 
el

ec
te

d
 S

tr
ee

t



 
 
Approved: 
 
William R. Bialecki, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk

 
 

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ar

te
r 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 E

lim
in

at
in

g
 e

le
ct

ed
 S

tr
ee

t 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

  (
14

02
 :

 C
h

ar
te

r 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 e
lim

in
at

in
g

 t
h

e 
el

ec
te

d
 S

tr
ee

t



13
.2

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
21

Attachment: Ordinance - Special Assessment Payment Options  (1406 : Special Assessment Payment



13
.2

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
22

Attachment: Ordinance - Special Assessment Payment Options  (1406 : Special Assessment Payment



13
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
23

Attachment: BPW-Specials Payment Plan  (1406 : Special Assessment Payment changes)



13
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
24

Attachment: BPW-Specials Payment Plan  (1406 : Special Assessment Payment changes)



13
.2

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
25

Attachment: BPW-Specials Payment Plan  (1406 : Special Assessment Payment changes)



 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2015- 
Introduced: 
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 32, Article IV, Section 32-88(f)(1) of the Code of Ordinances for 
the City of Merrill is amended as follows: 

(f) Bond; insurance.  
(1) Cash bond. Any agent or property owner who excavates or requests a street 

opening shall have a cash bond in an amount of $500.00 filed with the city 
clerk on a yearly basis in advance of receiving a street opening permit. The 
cash bond filed with the city clerk shall be good for a period of one year, and 
the cash bond shall be returned to the agent or property owner, upon written 
request, if all work is done in accordance with the provisions of this article as of 
January 1 of each year, unless requested to be refiled by the agent. The bond 
shall be over and above any street opening charges. In the event any claim is 
made under this section, then the bond shall be used to offset the claims, with 
the balance of the bond being returned to the permit holder as provided herein. 
In addition, any general penalties provided under section 1-7 and subsection 
(g) of this section, shall first be satisfied from the bond prior to return of said 
bond.  

Section 2. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 
and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this ordinance. It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that 
this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal provision had not been 
included or any illegal application had not been made. 

Section 3. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and 
resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
from and after its passage and publication. 

AN ORDINANCE: By Board of Public Works 
Re: Amending Chapter 32, Article IV, Section 32-

88(f)(1) change language relative to bond 
refunds    

13.3.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
ia

n
n

ce
 o

n
 B

o
n

d
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
fo

r 
S

tr
ee

t 
O

p
en

in
g

s 
 (

14
13

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
e:

 b
o

n
d

 r
ef

u
n

d
s 

fo
r 

st
ee

t 
o

p
en

in
g

s)

https://www.municode.com/library/wi/merrill/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTICOOR_CH1GEPR_S1-7GEPE


 
 

 

 
 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published: 

 

Approved: 
 
 
William R. Bialecki,  
Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk

 
 

13.3.a

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
ia

n
n

ce
 o

n
 B

o
n

d
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
fo

r 
S

tr
ee

t 
O

p
en

in
g

s 
 (

14
13

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
e:

 b
o

n
d

 r
ef

u
n

d
s 

fo
r 

st
ee

t 
o

p
en

in
g

s)



13
.3

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
28

Attachment: Request for Ordinance on Street Opening Bond Refunds  (1413 : Ordinance re: bond refunds


	Agenda Packet
	1. Call to Order
	1. Roll Call

	2. Invocation by Pastor Andy Perry, Bible Presbyterian Church
	3. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Roll Call
	5. Public Comment Period
	6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s):
	1. 1407 : Minutes of November 10, 2015 meeting
	a. 2015-11-10 Minutes


	7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s):
	1. 1408 : Revenue & Expense Report as of November 30, 2015
	a. Revenue & Expense Report


	8. Public Hearing(s):
	1. 1411 : Hearing on Street Commissioner Charter Ordinance

	9. General agenda items:
	1. 1421 : Gartmann Claim
	a. Gartmann Insurance Claim
	b. Gartmann Recommendation from Insurance
	c. Gartmann Insurance Claim Letter

	2. 1409 : Employee Years of Service Recognition
	1410 : Honor Tim Koenig
	3. 1420 : Presentation by River District Development Foundation
	a. Request on River Bend Trail presentation


	10. Personnel and Finance Committee:
	1. 1415 : Bids on lot at 301 East Second Street
	a. Request to consider bids for sale of lot on East Second


	11. Placing Committee Reports on File:
	1. 1412 : File Committee Reports
	a. Committee Minutes


	12. Resolutions
	1. 1428 : Fire Union Contract
	a. Resolution - Fire Union Contract
	b. Fire Contract Fiscal Impact
	c. Fire Contract 2016-2017

	2. 1417 : Resolution on WI-FI/Internet expenditures
	a. Resoltuion on Wi Fi Internet
	b. BackGround Info Wi Fi

	3. 1429 : Resolution Alamsa - 900 E. 1st Street
	a. Resolution - 900 E. 1st Street
	b. Background 900 E. 1st Street


	13. Ordinances:
	1. 1402 : Charter Ordinance eliminating the elected Street Commissioner
	a. Charter Ordinance Eliminating elected Street Commissioner

	2. 1406 : Special Assessment Payment changes
	a. Ordinance - Special Assessment Payment Options
	b. BPW-Specials Payment Plan

	3. 1413 : Ordinance re: bond refunds for steet openings
	a. Ordiannce on Bond Refunds for Street Openings
	b. Request for Ordinance on Street Opening Bond Refunds


	14. Mayor's Communications
	15. Adjournment

	Appendix
	6.1.a · 2015-11-10 Minutes
	7.1.a · Revenue & Expense Report
	9.1.a · Gartmann Insurance Claim
	9.1.b · Gartmann Recommendation from Insurance
	9.1.c · Gartmann Insurance Claim Letter
	9.3.a · Request on River Bend Trail presentation
	10.1.a · Request to consider bids for sale of lot on East Second
	11.1.a · Committee Minutes
	12.1.a · Resolution - Fire Union Contract
	12.1.b · Fire Contract Fiscal Impact
	12.1.c · Fire Contract 2016-2017
	12.2.a · Resoltuion on Wi Fi Internet
	12.2.b · BackGround Info Wi Fi
	12.3.a · Resolution - 900 E. 1st Street
	12.3.b · Background 900 E. 1st Street
	13.1.a · Charter Ordinance Eliminating elected Street Commissioner
	13.2.a · Ordinance - Special Assessment Payment Options
	13.2.b · BPW-Specials Payment Plan
	13.3.a · Ordiannce on Bond Refunds for Street Openings
	13.3.b · Request for Ordinance on Street Opening Bond Refunds


